

NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ACTIVE INVESTMENT MANAGERS

BYLAWS OF THE NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF ACTIVE INVESTMENT MANAGERS

A corporation chartered under the nonprofit laws of the State of Michigan

As amended December 29, 2017

ARTICLE I NAME, SEAL AND PRINCIPAL OFFICE

Section 1. Name. The name of the corporation shall be the National Association of Active Investment Managers (hereinafter referred to as the "Corporation").

Section 2. Seal. The seal of the Corporation shall contain the name of the Corporation and be of such design as the Board of Directors shall approve.

Section 3. Principal Office. The Corporation shall maintain its principal office at such location as the Board of Directors may designate.

ARTICLE II NATURE OF THE CORPORATION

Section 1. Purposes. The purposes of the Corporation are to promote the common interests of those members who provide active investment management services for clients. "Active investment management services" means taking an active role in investment selection and risk management with the objective of improving a portfolio's risk/reward relationship. The Corporation will undertake the following activities in pursuit of such purposes:

a. Providing education with regard to the concept and benefits of active investment management services and promoting the public's use of such services;

b. Keeping its members informed of legislative and administrative changes affecting investment advisory services;

c. Providing the opportunity to members for the exchange of experiences and opinions through discussions, study and publications;

d. Representing the interest of its members before appropriate legislative and administrative bodies in the formulation of policy affecting such services;

e. Developing and encouraging the practice of high standards of personal and professional conduct among members and the public;

f. Acquiring, preserving and disseminating data and valuable information relative to, or useful in providing, active investment management services;

g. Doing any other things necessary or proper to forward the interest of members providing active investment management services.

ARTICLE III MEMBERSHIP

Section 1. Classes of Membership. There shall be the following mutually exclusive classes of membership:

- a. regular member
- b. associate member
- c. special member

The term "member" as used throughout these bylaws refers to a person belonging to any of the membership classifications above set forth whose dues are current. "Person" shall include any natural person, corporation, partnership, trust or any other type of entity.

Section 2. Eligibility for Regular Membership. Any natural person who currently is an investment advisor representative registered, or exempt from registration, with any state securities administrator shall be eligible for regular membership.

Section 3. Associate Members. Persons providing products or services to, related to, or investments utilized by regular members may become associate members. For example, without limitation, mutual funds, trust companies, broker-dealers, investment advisors to mutual funds, media, newsletters, performance measurement firms, pension administrators, and such other natural persons or firms as the Board of Directors shall designate, may become associate members.

Section 4. Special Members. Persons ineligible for any other class of membership may be appointed Special members by an affirmative vote of the majority of the Board of Directors.

Section 5. Further Requirements. The Board of Directors may establish additional rules, regulations, and requirements for admission to membership, if any, and such additional requirements shall become effective when approved at any regular meeting or any special meeting called for that purpose of the members of the Corporation. All applicants for admission for membership shall have the responsibility of furnishing sufficient evidence of experience to qualify them for admission in one of the three membership classes.

Section 6. Voting Power and Rights. Only Regular Members shall be entitled to vote. Each Regular Member shall be entitled to one vote on any and all questions coming before the members. Each member of the Corporation entitled to vote at any meeting of the members may be represented and vote by proxy.

Section 7. Members' Standards of Conduct. NAAIM's Articles of Incorporation and its Bylaws, Code of Ethics, and the Fair Practices Policy ("Governing Documents") bind all members of NAAIM, by virtue of such membership. Membership is conditioned upon the delivery by each member of an annual statement of adherence to the Governing Documents in the form prescribed by the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors shall have the authority to suspend or revoke the membership of any member found to be in violation of the Governing Documents, or whose actions or conduct impugns or draws into question the reputation or integrity of NAAIM and its members.

ARTICLE IV DIRECTORS

Section 1. Number and Authority. The affairs of the corporation shall be conducted and managed by a Board of Directors (herein sometimes referred to as the "Board") consisting of the officers of the Corporation and nine (9) Directors. The Directors shall act only as a Board and individual Directors shall have no power as such, except to the extent modified below.

Section 2. Qualification and Authority. Members of the Board of Directors shall be limited to regular members, and to the extent possible, shall represent a diversity of geographic regions, and levels of assets under management. They shall be elected for a term of three (3) years unless sooner removed, and until their successors are duly elected and qualified. At each annual meeting of the Corporation, members shall elect a number of Directors equal to the number of vacancies resulting from expired terms, enlargement of the Board, or any other reason. No non-officer Director shall serve more than two (2) consecutive terms. Any Director who has served two (2) consecutive terms and who does not serve on the Board of Directors for one (1) year thereafter is again eligible for election.

Section 3. Removal of Directors. Any member of the Board of Directors may be removed without cause by a vote of 75% of the members of the Board at a meeting of the Board. The Director whose removal is sought shall not have a vote.

Section 4. Attendance – Directors are expected to attend all meetings of the Board of Directors. Failure to attend three consecutive meetings, or less than 50 percent (50%) of meetings annually, shall result in removal from the Board of Directors.

Section 5. Vacancies. Any interim vacancy occurring for any reason in the Board of Directors shall be filled by the majority vote of the remaining members of the Board. The term of any Director elected to fill a vacancy shall expire when the term of the person whom such Director replaced would otherwise have expired.

Section 6. Chairman of the Board. The immediate past president of the Corporation shall serve as the

Chairperson of the Board and as a voting member of the Board of Directors ex officio.

Section 7. Other Ex Officio Members. In addition to the ex officio member provided in Section 6 hereof, all past presidents of the Corporation shall serve ex officio on the Board of Directors. However, only the Chairperson shall be entitled to vote.

ARTICLE V

EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE; OTHER COMMITTEES

Section 1. Designation of Executive Committee.

The Executive Committee shall consist of the Chairman, President, Vice-President, Secretary, Treasurer and up to two additional designees, appointed by the President, from the current Board of Directors.

Section 2. Powers of the Executive Committee. During the intervals between meetings of the Board of Directors, and subject to such limitations as may be required by law, by these bylaws, or by resolution of the Board of Directors, the Executive Committee shall have and may exercise all the authority of the Board of Directors in the management of the corporation. Reasonable efforts will be made to contact the Board of Directors, however, whenever possible. The Executive Committee may also from time to time formulate and recommend to the Board of Directors for approval general policies regarding the management of the affairs of the Corporation.

Section 3. Designation of Nominating Committee/Powers. The Nominating Committee shall consist of the Executive Committee, and two (2) regular members of the Corporation chosen by the President. The Chairman shall serve as chairperson of the Nominating Committee. The Committee shall have the power to nominate members of the Board of Directors as well as officers of the Corporation, taking into account the need for balanced representation of the membership at large.

Section 4. Establishment of Other Committees. The President of the Corporation, with the concurrence of a majority of the Board of Directors, shall establish and appoint members to such other committees as may be required for the purposes of the Corporation. All committees shall report to the Board, and their action shall be subject to approval by the Board.

ARTICLE VI OFFICERS OF THE CORPORATION

Section 1. Elected Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall be a President, a Vice President, a Secretary, a Treasurer, and such other officers, assistant officers, and agents, as the Board of Directors may from time to time deem necessary. Any two or more offices may be held by the same person. Two or more officers in more than one capacity shall execute, acknowledge, or verify any instrument required by law, the Articles, or these bylaws, to be executed, acknowledged or verified.

Section 2. Duties of Elected Officers. The elected officers shall have such authority and perform such duties in the management of the Corporation's affairs and activities as usually pertain to the offices they hold, as may be assigned to them by the Board, or as may be otherwise provided by these bylaws, including but not by way of limitation the following:

President. The President shall preside at all meetings of the members and shall have general and active management of the affairs of the Corporation and shall see that all orders and resolutions of the Board are carried into effect. He/she shall execute in the corporate name all authorized deeds mortgages, bonds, contracts, or other instruments requiring a seal under the seal of the Corporation, except in cases in which the signing or execution thereof shall be expressly delegated by the Board of Directors to some other officer or agent of the Corporation, and shall have power and authority to perform all other duties usually incident to such office.

a. **Vice President.** The Vice President shall, in the temporary absence or disability of the President, perform the duties of the President and such other duties as the Board of Directors shall prescribe.

b. **Secretary.** The Secretary shall attend all meetings of the Board of Directors and record all votes and the minutes of all meetings in a book or electronic media to be kept for that purpose. In the absence or disability of the Secretary, the President may appoint an Acting Secretary to perform these functions. The Secretary shall keep in safe custody the seal of the Corporation, and, when authorized by the Board of Directors, affix the seal to any instrument requiring it, and, when so affixed, it shall be attested by his/her signature or the signature of the Treasurer.

d. **Treasurer.** The Treasurer shall manage the custody of the funds and securities of the Corporation. He/she shall keep a full and accurate record of all monies received and paid out and of all vouchers and receipts given therefore, in books belonging to the Corporation. The Treasurer shall deposit all monies and other valuable effects in the name and to the credit of the corporation as may be ordered by the Board of Directors, taking proper vouchers for such disbursements, and shall render an account of all his/her transactions as Treasurer and of the financial condition of the Corporation whenever called upon to do so. If required by the Board of Directors, he/she shall give the Corporation a Bond in such form and penalty, and with such surety or sureties as the Board of Directors may prescribe.

Section 3. Election of Officers. The officers of the Corporation shall be chosen at the annual membership meeting by votes cast, and may succeed themselves in office. Unless otherwise sooner removed by the Board of Directors, the officers of the Corporation shall serve for a term of one (1) year and until their successors are elected and shall qualify. Beginning with the annual election in 2018, no person shall serve as President for more than two (2), consecutive one-year terms. Other officers shall serve no more than four (4) consecutive, one-year terms in the same office. Any officer who has served four (4) consecutive terms in the same office, and who does not hold said office for one (1) year thereafter, is again eligible for election. In the case of any vacancy in any office, including a permanent vacancy in the office of President, of the Corporation, the vacancy shall be filled by the Board of Directors.

ARTICLE VII MEETINGS

Section 1. Meetings of the Members of the Corporation. Annual Meetings of the members of the Corporation shall be held at such time and place as may be designated by the Board of Directors. The meeting shall be held for the election of Officers and Directors and any other business which may be properly brought before it.

Section 2. Other Regular Meetings of the Corporation. In addition to the regular Annual Meeting of the members of the Corporation, other regular meetings shall be held at such times and places as may be established by the Board of Directors. At any regular meeting, any matter may be brought before the meeting which is within the purposes and powers of the Corporation and in accordance with the articles and bylaws, without special notice having been given as otherwise herein provided.

Section 3. Special Meetings of the Corporation. Special meetings of the members of the Corporation may be called by the President, a majority of the Executive Committee or a majority of the Board of Directors, or at the request of twenty-five (25%) percent of the members.

Section 4. Meetings of the Board of Directors.

a. **Annual Meeting.** Annual Meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held prior to the annual meeting of members at such place and time as may be fixed by the President.

b. **Regular Meetings**. Regular meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at such time and in such place as the Board may establish. At any regular meeting, any matter may be brought before the meeting which is within the purposes and powers of the Board and in accordance with the articles and bylaws, without special notice having been given as otherwise herein provided.

c. **Other Meetings**. Other meetings of the Board of Directors shall be held at any time and at any place as may be from time to time determined by the President, or upon the request of three (3) members of the Board.

d. **Electronic Action**. A member of the Board may participate in a meeting by means of conference telephone or other electronic communications by means of which all persons participating in the meeting can hear each other.

e. **Informal Action**. Any action required or permitted to be taken at any meeting of the Board of Directors may be taken without a meeting, if consent to such action, either written or by electronic communication, is received from 75% of the voting members of the Board, and such consent is filed in lieu of minutes of such meetings.

Section 5. Notice of Meetings. Written notice of all regular and special meetings of the members of the Corporation shall be sent in either written or electronic form to all regular members at least ten (10) days prior to the date thereof, specifying the time and place. Notice of the exact date, hour, and place of Annual Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be given to each member of the Board of Directors not less than ten (10) days prior to the date of such meeting. Other meetings of the Board of Directors shall be preceded by written or electronic notice not

later than ten (10) days prior to the date of such meetings. Meetings of the Executive Committee shall be preceded by the giving of informal notice in such manner as the Executive Committee may by resolution determine to be reasonable. Notice of special meetings shall state the purpose of such meetings.

Section 6. Quorum. The members present in person or by proxy at any regular or special meeting of the members of the Corporation shall constitute a quorum. At the meetings of the Board of Directors, the majority of the entire Board of Directors shall constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. A majority of the entire Executive Committee shall be necessary to constitute a quorum for the transaction of any business of the Executive Committee.

Section 7. Voting. Only regular members of the Corporation shall be entitled to vote at a meeting of the members of the Corporation. A vote of a majority of those present in person or by proxy, signed and filed with the corporation, shall be sufficient to take any action. The vote of a majority of the members of the Board of Directors or the Executive Committee, as the case may be, present and voting at any duly constituted meeting of that body shall be sufficient to take any action, unless otherwise limited by the Articles of Incorporation or by these bylaws.

ARTICLE VIII FISCAL YEAR

The fiscal year of the corporation shall be from January 1 to December 31 of each year.

ARTICLE IX CONTRACTUAL OBLIGATIONS; BOOKS AND RECORDS; MISCELLANEOUS

Section 1. Contracts, Checks, Notes, Etc. All checks, drafts, notes, bonds, bills of exchange, and orders for the payment of money, as well as contracts and agreements, shall, unless otherwise required by law or permitted by these bylaws, be signed by such officer or officers as the Board of Directors may from time to time designate.

Section 2. Books and Records. Correct and accurate books and records of accounts and transactions and minutes of the proceedings of the members, Board of Directors and Executive Committee shall be kept by the Corporation. The President of the Corporation shall cause to be prepared annually a full and correct statement of the affairs of the Corporation, including a balance sheet and financial statement of operations for the preceding fiscal year, and filed within ninety (90) days thereafter with the Secretary of the Corporation.

Section 3. Dues. Membership dues may be established from time to time by the Board of Directors. Separate classifications of dues may be established for different classes of members.

ARTICLE X INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

Section 1. Third-Party Suits. To the extent permitted by the laws of the state of incorporation from time to time in effect and subject to the provisions of this Article X, the Corporation shall indemnify a person who was or is a party to or is threatened to be made a party to a threatened, pending or completed action, suit or proceeding, whether civil, criminal, administrative or investigative, and whether formal or informal, other than an action by or in the right of the corporation by reason of the fact that he/she is or was a director or officer of the Corporation or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, partner or trustee of any foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise, whether for profit or not, against expenses (including attorneys' fees), judgments, penalties, fines and amounts paid in settlement actually and reasonably incurred by him/her in connection with the action, suit or proceeding, if the person acted in good faith and in a manner he/she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interest of the corporation or its members and the person submits a written claim for indemnification as hereinafter provided and, with respect to a criminal action or proceeding, had no reasonable cause to believe his/her conduct was unlawful and the person submits a written claim for indemnification as hereinafter provided. The termination of an action, suit, or proceeding by judgment, order, settlement, conviction, or upon a plea of nolo contendere or its equivalent, shall not, of itself, create a presumption that the person did not act in good faith and in a manner which he/she reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation or its members and, with respect to a criminal action or proceeding, had reasonable cause to believe his/her conduct was unlawful.

The right to indemnification conferred in this section shall be a contract right. The Corporation may, by action of its Board of Directors, or by action of any person to whom the Board of Directors has delegated such authority,

provide indemnification to employees and agents of the Corporation with the same scope and effect as the foregoing indemnification of directors and officers.

Section 2. Suits By or In Right of the Corporation. To the extent permitted by the laws of the state of incorporation from time to time in effect and subject to the provisions of this Article X, the Corporation shall indemnify a person who was or is a party to or is threatened to be made a party to a threatened, pending or completed action or suit by or in the right of the Corporation to procure a judgment in its favor by reason of the fact that he/she is or was a director or officer of the Corporation or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a director, officer, partner or trustee of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise, whether for profit or not, against expenses (including actual and reasonable attorneys' fees) and amounts paid in settlement incurred by the person in connection with the action or suit if the person acted in good faith and in a manner the person reasonably believed to be in or not opposed to the best interests of the Corporation or its members, and the person provides a written claim for indemnification as hereinafter provided. Indemnification shall not be made, however, for a claim, issue, or matter in which the person shall have been found liable to the Corporation that, despite the adjudication of liability but in a view of all the circumstances of the case, the person is fairly and reasonably entitled to indemnification for the expenses which the court considers proper.

The right to indemnification conferred in this section shall be a contract right. The Corporation may, by action of its Board of Directors or by action of any person to who the Board of Directors has delegated such authority, provide indemnification to employees and agents of the Corporation with the same scope and effect as the foregoing indemnification of directors and officers.

Section 3. Indemnification Against Expenses. To the extent that a director, officer, employee or agent of the Corporation has been successful on the merits or otherwise in defense of an action, suit, or proceeding referred to in Sections 1 and 2 of this Article X or in defense of a claim, issue or matter in the action, suit, or proceeding, he/she shall be indemnified against expenses (including actual and reasonable attorneys' fees incurred by him/her in connection with the action, suit, or proceeding and an action, suit, or proceeding brought to enforce the mandatory indemnification provided in this subsection.

Section 4. Determination that Indemnification Is Proper. An indemnification under Sections 1 or 2 of this Article X, unless ordered by a court, shall be made by the Corporation only as authorized in the specific case upon a determination that indemnification of the person is proper in the circumstances because he/she has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in said Sections 1 and 2. Such determination shall be made within 30 days after a written claim for indemnification has been received by the Corporation and shall be made in any of the following ways: (1) by a majority vote of a quorum of the Board consisting of directors who were not parties to the action, suit, or proceeding; or (2) if such a quorum is not obtainable, then by a majority vote of a committee of directors who are not parties to the action which Committee shall consist of not less than two disinterested directors; or (3) by independent legal counsel in a written opinion; or (4) by the members.

If a person is entitled to indemnification under Section 1 or 2 for a portion but not for the total amount of expenses including attorneys' fees, judgments, penalties, fines, and amounts paid in settlement, the Corporation shall indemnify the person for the portion of the expenses, judgments, penalties, fines, or amounts paid in settlement for which the person is entitled to be indemnified.

Section 5. Reimbursement of Expenses. Expenses incurred in defending a civil or criminal action, suit, or proceeding described in Sections 1 and 2 of this Article may be paid by the corporation in advance of the final disposition of such action, suit or proceeding upon receipt of an undertaking by or on behalf of such person to repay the expenses if it is ultimately determined that the person is not entitled to be indemnified by the Corporation. The undertaking shall be by unlimited general obligation of the person on whose behalf advances are made but need not be secured.

Section 6. Right of Officer to Bring Suit. If a claim for indemnification is not paid in full by the Corporation within forty-five (45) days after a written claim has been received by the corporation, the officer or director who submitted the claim (hereinafter the "indemnitee") may at any time thereafter bring suit against the Corporation to recover the unpaid amount of the claim. If successful in whole or in part in any such suit or in a suit brought by the Corporation to recover advances, the indemnitee shall be entitled to be paid also the expense of prosecuting or defending such claim.

In any action brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right hereunder (other than an action brought to enforce a claim for expenses incurred in defending any proceeding in advance of its final disposition where the required undertaking, if any has been tendered to the Corporation) it shall be a defense that the indemnitee has not met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Sections 1 or 2. Furthermore, in any action brought by the Corporation to recover advances the Corporation shall be entitled to recover such advances if the indemnitee has not met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Sections 1 or 2.

Neither the failure of the Corporation (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel, or its members) to have made a determination prior to the commencement of such action that indemnification of the indemnitee is proper in the circumstances because he/she has met the applicable standard of conduct set forth in Sections 1 or 2, nor an actual determination by the Corporation (including its Board of Directors, independent legal counsel, or its members) that the indemnitee has not met such applicable standard of conduct, shall be a defense to an action brought by the indemnitee or create a presumption that the indemnitee has not met the applicable standard of conduct. In any action brought by the indemnitee to enforce a right hereunder or by the Corporation to recover payments by the Corporation of advances, the burden of proof shall be on the Corporation.

Section 7. Bylaws Not Inclusive. The indemnification or advancement of expenses provided under Sections 1 and 2 is not exclusive of other rights to which a person seeking indemnification or advancement of expenses may be entitled under the corporation's Articles of Incorporation, Bylaws, or a contractual agreement. However, the total amount of expenses advanced or indemnified from all sources combined shall not exceed the amount of actual expenses incurred by the person seeking indemnification or advancement of expenses.

The indemnification provided for in Sections 1 and 2 continues as to a person who ceases to be a director, officer, partner, or trustee and shall inure to the benefit of the heirs, executors, and administrators of the person.

Section 8. Liability Insurance. The Corporation may purchase and maintain insurance on behalf of any person who is or was a director, officer, employee or agent of the corporation or is or was serving at the request of the Corporation as a Director, officer, employee or of another Corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust or other enterprise against any liability asserted against him or her and incurred by him or her in any such capacity or arising out of his/her status as such, whether or not the corporation would have power to indemnify him or her against such liability under the Michigan Nonprofit Corporation Act or Sections 1 through 6.

Section 9. Definitions. As used herein, "corporation" includes all constituent corporations absorbed in a consolidation or merger and the resulting or surviving corporation, so that a person who is or was a director, officer, employee, or agent of the constituent corporation or is or was serving at the request of the constituent corporation as a director, officer, partner, trustee, employee, or agent of another foreign or domestic corporation, partnership, joint venture, trust, or other enterprise whether for profit or not shall stand in the same position under the provisions of this paragraph with respect to the resulting or surviving corporation as the person would if he/she had served the resulting or surviving corporation in the same capacity.

As used herein, "other enterprises" shall include employee benefit plans; "fines" shall include any excise taxes assessed on a person with respect to an employee benefit plan; and "serving at the request of the Corporation" shall include any service as a Director or officer of the Corporation which imposes duties on, or involves services by, the Director or officer with respect to an employee benefit plan, its participants or beneficiaries; and a person who acted in good faith and in a manner he/she reasonably believed to be in the interest of the participants and beneficiaries of an employee benefit plan shall be considered to have acted in a manner "not opposed to the best interest of the Corporation or its members" as referred to in Sections 1 and 2.

ARTICLE XI AMENDMENT OF BYLAWS

Section 1. Authority to Amend Bylaws. These bylaws may be amended or repealed at any regular or special meeting of the regular members of the Corporation, provided that notice thereof be given in the call of the meeting. Amendments or repeal shall be made by the affirmative vote of two-thirds (2/3) of the regular members of the Corporation present in person or by proxy and entitled to vote at such meeting; provided, however, that the affirmative vote shall consist of a majority of the regular members of the Corporation.